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BY EMAIL 
 
Wednesday 8th December 2010 
 
IFRS Foundation 
c/o www.ifrs.org 
 

 
Re:  Exposure Draft ED/2010/9, Leases 
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
We write in response to the publication for comment of ED/2010/9 leases.  
 
As one of the UK’s major providers of serviced offices we operate primarily from properties where we 
ourselves are lessees.  The proposals that are currently in the Exposure Draft would have a direct impact on 
our financial reporting and our commercial business and, therefore, we believe that it is important that we 
comment on them at this stage.  
 
We have been following the debate around the Exposure Draft (ED) and attended the RSA on 5 November 
2010.  We note that there is much criticism concerning the complexity and cost of the proposals as they 
currently stand and their possible contradiction with the economics of lease-related transactions   In particular, 
we have read and broadly concur with the views put forward by Leaseurope and the Finance and Leasing 
Association and do not repeat them unnecessarily.  
 
However, we do have the following additional comments on the ED which we believe will highlight some of the 
broader implications in the commercial context of our specific business.  References are to paragraphs of the 
ED. 
 
Background to and commercial context of MWB Business Exchange Plc 
 
MWB Business Exchange Plc represents a group of companies engaged in the serviced office sector.  We 
have revenue of over £100m, derived from approximately 2,000 clients, spread across 60 centres.  Our 
centres operate mostly from properties which are occupied by us as a leasehold tenant for leases on various 
terms up to a maximum of 25 years.  Our average serviced office client stays about two years, although the 
shortest term can be measured in weeks.  At 30 June 2010 we had equity of £26m and cash of £2.6m with no 
borrowings.  The group is listed on AIM. 
 
Impact on sector performance measurement  
 
Para. 5 The ED requires that its proposals should be applied to all leases (with certain exceptions for 

those less than twelve months in length).  In the serviced office sector the landlord/tenant 
relationship is well understood: rent charged by the landlord is booked as an operating cost 
in equal instalments over the lease’s lifetime.  We see no reason to change this.  EBITDA is 
an important metric within the industry, where it is used as an indicator of cash generated.  
The measurement proposals in the ED move away from the underlying cash transaction and 
artificially frontload the EBITDA over the life of a lease.  In addition, the notional split 
between an interest and a “right of use” charge would convert what in this sector is 
considered an operating cost into a financing cost.  Whilst we agree that lease commitments 
should be disclosed in the notes to the accounts, we see no need to amend the current 
accounting requirements insofar as property income and expense are concerned. 
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Economic contradiction of applying a finance charge to short term lease commitments 
 
Para 12 There are two main reasons for taking a lease in a property: one is the lack of available 

funding for an outright purchase and the other is that purchase of, say, a 25 year interest in a 
few floors of an office block is virtually impossible - there is no market.  This in turn makes 
the requirement to use the incremental borrowing rate which would be occasioned by such a 
purchase, as per para B11, extremely difficult.  At the inception of the ED as a standard, we 
would be faced with taking on over 50 leases with a total rental value of about four times our 
annual revenue.  There is unlikely to be any financial establishment which would be 
prepared to lend us the cash for the purchase of such assets on such a scale, so the 
incremental borrowing rate is quite literally anything between 0.5% base rate and infinity.  
Any rate in between is subjective.  One suggested alternative, of treating each lease as the 
first increment would result in an artificially low interest rate.  A second suggested 
alternative, of going back to the original start dates and ‘building up’ from there, would mean 
that the most recent leases would be assessed as having the highest rates and would 
therefore be punitive in the first years following adoption. 

 
Para 25 Following from the above, we believe that capitalisation in the statement of financial position 

on the scale required by the ED would be highly damaging to us as it will not be understood. 
 
Para 27 We also suggest that the classification of cash payments for leases as financing activities 

pre-judges the outcome of the debate about whether or not cash-flow should be reported 
gross 

 
Para 33 Concerning our clients’ contracts, the amounts charged are not based on any form of 

discount rate but are based on what the market will stand.  A longer contract may be at the 
same monthly amount as a shorter one for an identical room, it may be more expensive, it 
may be cheaper.  There is no “rate the lessor charges the lessee”, so this becomes a 
subjective exercise. 

 
Consistency of ED proposals with the accounting treatment of lease incentives 
 
Paras 90 & 94 The ED’s requirement to calculate the present value of all future lease payments does not 

appear to take into account current lease incentive accounting.  The ED does not appear to 
discuss the treatment of lease incentives already received or paid and included in the 
balance sheet.  We currently have over £20m of such items as a deferred liability and are not 
clear what their treatment would be on adoption of the standard?  Similarly, the ED does not 
discuss the treatment of previously capitalised initial direct costs incurred on leases (such as 
legal fees and stamp duty) which are now being amortised. 

 
Volatility in reporting caused by the estimation of lease terms 
 
Paras 13 et seq The ED requires that the lease term be determined by estimating the probability of 

occurrence for each possible lease term.  This is very subjective and very minor changes in 
methodology can result in major differences in outcome, as witnessed by the attached 
example (where a choice between using fractions and the nearest rounded decimal results in 
a difference of nearly 20% in reported expense over the first 10 years of the contract).  In 
addition, there is no requirement to match the expected outcome to the treatment of, for 
instance, fixed assets which may be installed in the leased properties (so the lease term 
could be deemed to be, say, 10 years but there may be assets installed in the premises 
being depreciated over 25 years).  Links need to be established so that the period selected 
is consistent with other elements of the balance sheet – and a priority ranking given as to 
which shall prevail in the case of disparities. 

1850-100 
Comment Letter No. 100



 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

 
Paras 34 & 39 As noted above, our average client contract is about two years.  Clients are welcome to 

renew contracts as long as they continue paying our fees.  Thus virtually every contract has 
the possibility of extending beyond 12 months but there is no way of knowing how long any 
particular contract will be.  If we take the average term almost all contracts will end up being 
reassessed, either because they have already ended or they have been extended.  Thus, as 
noted above concerning paras 13 et seq, the numbers produced will be based on a 
completely subjective view of what might happen, in this case modified retrospectively by 
what has already happened.  The amounts would be meaningless, and the process to 
produce them extremely onerous and costly. 

 
Subjectivity of on-going measurement provides opportunities for manipulation of financial statements 
 
Paras 90 & 94 The inconsistency between the methods and the rates prescribed by the paragraphs 

concerning initial and on-going recognition of lessor and lessee contracts is very much open 
to question.  The possibilities of balance sheet manipulation (and hence future income and 
expenditure manipulation) are enormous.  Both should be based on the conditions prevailing 
at the adoption date (otherwise even deals done on the same day in the past, lease received 
and lease given, could be on vastly different rates). 

 
Commercial impact of current classification proposals 
 
Paras 64 & 65 The cut-off proposed in the ED (of being able to treat leases of less than 12 months as they 

are currently) is arbitrary and will drive contracts such as those mentioned above to be 
limited to 365 days, which is an undesirable example of an accountancy prescription taking 
precedence over commercial good sense.  If the distinction remains, we will end up with two 
radically different income and expenditure treatments for the same services: All the lease 
income would be included within EBITDA for those contracts less than 12 months whilst they 
would be treated as finance revenue and front-loaded for all contracts over 12 months.  We 
believe that this is not helpful to the readers and end users of the accounts.  Our other 
comments discuss the issues concerning the alternative, of considering every single contract 
as a full lease.. 

 
Comments on additional accounting and administrative burden 
 
Paras 73-86 The disclosure requirements are excessive and extremely onerous – given the proposed 

convergence with FASB we wonder whether this is in part influenced by the FASB rulebook 
approach.  We believe that organisations need to be provided with enough flexibility to be 
able to provide meaningful information most relevant to their business, based solely on the 
requirements of para 70. 

 
Para 89 Our understanding is that adoption of this standard will mean the presentation of three 

balance sheets in its first year, which is not reasonable in our view. 
 
Conclusion 
 
You will see from the above that our main concerns in relation to the ED relate to the subjectivity of 
measurement involved, the seemingly arbitrary cut-off points, the additional accounting and administrative 
burden and cost and most importantly for us, inconsistency with the economic realities of the serviced office 
sector..  In our opinion the proposals in the ED are particularly problematic in relation to property leases and 
property related contracts. We do not see how the introduction of the standard in its current form can have 
anything other than a negative impact on the reporting of our businesses performance, our ability to raise 
funds or negotiate lease terms, or the understanding of our business in the sector or by the public at large.  
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We hope that the IASB will seriously consider the implications of the issues that we have tried to highlight in 
this letter and would press the IASB to consult more fully with all those involved before introducing any change 
in the accounting treatment of leases.  Given how significant the accounting treatment of leases is for our 
business, we would welcome the opportunity to be participate in any further consultation. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Keval Pankhania 
Finance Director 
 
 
(D): +44 (0)20 7868 7255 
(M): +44 (0)7771 653 651 
(E):  kpankhania@mwb.co.uk 
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